

02

Sorszám: 1)

**Tárgy:** Borosjenő-Mezőberény Interreg RO-HU pályázat  
**Előterjesztő:** Siklósi István polgármester  
**Készítette:**  
**Véleményező** Sürgősséggel  
**Bizottság:**  
**Mellékletek:** pályázói nyilatkozat  
 partnerségi szerződés  
**Tervezett döntés:** 1 db határozat  
**Döntés:** Egyszerű többségi, nyílt szavazással

**ELŐTERJESZTÉS**  
**a Mezőberény Város Önkormányzati Képviselő-**  
**testület 2018. január 15-i rendkívüli ülésére**

**Tisztelt Képviselő-testület!**

2018. január 14-én a román partner megküldte azokat a dokumentumokat, amelyek a „*Development touristic and cultural Infrastructure in Neighbourhood Area – Mezobereny – Ineu Collectively*” (*DINAMIC*) – „Turisztikai és kulturális infrastruktúra fejlesztése Szomszédos országokban - Mezőberény – Borosjenő” című pályázat benyújtásához szükségesek. Ezek között több olyan is van, amelyet korábban nem jeleztek, így azok előzetes tanulmányozására, a szükséges döntések meghozatalára nem volt lehetőségünk. A pályázati projekt ötlet benyújtási határideje 2018. január 15. magyar idő szerint 15 óra. Ez indokolja a rendkívüli, sürgősséggel való tárgyalását a napirendnek.

A pályázat elő bírálata előre láthatóan három hónapon belül valósul meg, amely után az esetlegesen elnyerhető összeg függvényében akár az önerő, akár az egész projekt újra gondolása is megtörténhet a mezőberényi önkormányzat részéről. Az elő bírálat pozitív döntésétől számított hat hónap áll rendelkezésre a részletes infrastrukturális fejlesztés és egyéb tartalmi elemek kidolgozására.

A projekt ötlet benyújtásához az eddig megküldött előkészítő anyagokon kívül szükség van egy pályázói nyilatkozatra, valamint egy partnerségi szerződésre. A nyilatkozatban egy előzetes kötelezettség vállalásra kell sort keríteni nyertes pályázat esetén felhasználandó önerő mértékére, összegszerűségére. A kiírás értelmében a magyar országai pályázó 5% önerőt kell vállaljon, amely a mi esetünkben a beadni tervezett anyagban 100.676,5 €, amely a következők alapján jön ki:

teljes pályázati költség Mezőberényben	95% támogatás	5% önerő	pénznem	€/Ft napi árfolyam 311 Ft/€
2 013 530,0	1 912 853,5	100 676,5	€	
626 207 830,0	594 897 438,5	31 310 391,5	Ft	

**Határozati javaslat:**

Mezőberény Város Önkormányzati Képviselő-testülete felhatalmazza a polgármestert, hogy a „*Development touristic and cultural Infrastructure in Neighbourhood Area – Mezobereny – Ineu Collectively*” (DINAMIC) – „Turisztikai és kulturális infrastruktúra fejlesztése Szomszédos országokban - Mezőberény – Borosjenő” című pályázat benyújtásához pályázói nyilatkozatot írjon alá azzal, hogy az abban szereplő önerő maximum a teljes projekt költségének 5%-a, 100.767,5 € (napi árfolyamon 31.310.392,- Ft) lehet.

Felhatalmazza továbbá, hogy háromoldalú partneri szerződést írjon alá a projekt ötlet beadásához a Ineu (Borosjenő) önkormányzatot képviselő polgármesterrel és a román partner saját projekt részébe bevont szervezettel.

Felelős: Siklósi István polgármester

Határidő: intézkedésre azonnal

Mezőberény, 2018. január 15.



Siklósi István  
polgármester

[To be printed on an official letterhead of the Applicant organisation]

## Project Applicant Declaration under the Interreg V-A Romania-Hungary

Siklósi István identified with the ID, nr \_\_\_\_\_ issued by \_\_\_\_\_, as legal representative of *Mezobereny City* acting as beneficiary in the project *Development touristic and cultural Infrastructure in Neighbourhood Area – Mezobereny – Ineu Collectively* knowing that false in declaration represents a crime under the Criminal Code, I declare that:

### **A. Declaration for submission**

- I certify that the information contained in the application form and its annexes is accurate and true and that the financial support from the Programme is necessary for the project to be implemented.
- I certify that the information from the paper version is identic with the information from the scanned version. I understand that in case differences are identified between the electronic version and the paper version my application could be rejected.
- I certify that the project is in line with the relevant EU and national/regional legislation and policies of the regions and countries involved;
- I confirm that the project respects the principles of transparency, national integrity, equal opportunities and non-discrimination, sustainable development, equality between men and women and has no harmful impact on the environment;
- I confirm that the project is in line with the EUSDR;
- I confirm that my organization is committed to take part in the project's activities and financing;
- I certify that I have no knowledge of any reason for which the project could not be implemented or its implementation could be delayed.
- I understand that if there are any missing, inexact or incomplete data in this Application Form or its annexes, my application could be rejected.

### **B. Declaration of eligibility**

- **The body/institution I represent** is not bankrupt or wound up, has not its affairs administered by the courts, has not entered into an arrangement with creditors, has not suspended business activities, is not the subject of proceedings concerning those matters, and is not in any analogous situation arising from a similar procedure provided for in national legislation or EU regulations;
- **Its legal representatives** have not been convicted of an offence concerning professional conduct by a judgment which has the force of *res judicata* (i.e., against which no appeal is possible);
- **Its legal representatives** are not guilty of serious professional misconduct proven by any means;
- **The body I represent** has fulfilled all obligations relating to the payment of debts to the consolidated state budget;
- **Its legal representatives** have not been the subject of a judgment which has the force of *res judicata* for fraud, corruption, involvement in a criminal organisation or any other illegal activity detrimental to the Communities or national financial interests;
- **Neither the body/institution I represent, nor its legal representatives** have been declared to be in serious breach of contract for failure to comply with their contractual obligations in connection

with a procurement procedure or other grant award procedure financed by the Community or national budget;

- **The body/institution I represent** has not benefited of financing support from public funds in the past 5 years before the deadline for submitting the applications under this call for proposals for the same operation in terms of objectives, activities and results achieved (for infrastructure projects this provision refers to the same type of infrastructure/segment of infrastructure);
- **Neither the body/institution I represent, nor its legal representatives are** subject to a conflict of interests, as defined by the national legislation; the conflict of interests represents any circumstances that may affect the evaluation or implementation process, in an objective and impartial manner. Such circumstances may result from economic interests, political or national preferences or family connections.
- **Neither the body/institution I represent, nor its legal representatives are** guilty of misrepresentation in supplying the information required by the Managing Authority /Joint Secretariat as a condition of participation in the call for proposals;
- **Neither I nor any of the body/institution I represent, nor its legal representatives** have attempted or will attempt to obtain confidential information or influence the evaluation bodies during the evaluation process of current or previous calls for proposals.
- **The body/institution I represent** is entitled to take action in the field/fields addressed by the project.
- **The operation has not been** physically completed or fully implemented before the application for funding under the programme is submitted by the beneficiary to the managing authority, irrespective of whether all related payments have been made by the beneficiary. For activities implemented before the submission of an application for funding, for which the expenses will be reimbursed as preparatory costs, applicable legislation has been complied with;
- **The operation does not include** activities which were part of an operation which has been or should have been subject to a procedure of recovery in accordance with Article 71 following the relocation of a productive activity outside the programme area.
- **No activities** that are foreseen to be externalised will be also performed by own staff (for projects externalising parts or hole of the project management, including external expertise related to the organisation of the public procurements for the project, services related to the financial and technical reporting for the project or other activities).
- The Application to be submitted under the Interreg V-A Romania-Hungary Programme is in conformity with the data included in the local impact analysis, previously submitted to the Romanian Competition Council in order to obtain the Confirmation letter regarding the incidence of State aid rules as to the project's activities, and is compliant with the recommendations formulated by the Romanian Competition Council, if applicable.

### **C. Declaration for commitment**

- **The body/institution I represent** will provide its own contribution to the eligible expenditure and ensure the temporary availability of funds necessary to run the project before and between the reimbursements from the Programme;
- **The body/institution I represent** will cover all non-eligible expenditures corresponding to its activities incurred during project implementation;
- **The body/institution I represent** will ensure that the representatives in the project management team are available throughout the entire project implementation period;
- **The body/institution I represent** will ensure the availability of all other resources planned to be used for implementing the project, as they were described within the Application Form.

- **The body/institution I represent** declares that budget cuts / reviews of the size of the estimated budget may become necessary, in the context of the pre-defined condition of ensuring a balanced financial allocation among the 8 eligible counties<sup>1</sup>;
- **The body/institution I represent** declares to accept all obligations as a project beneficiary deriving from the subsidy contract, which will be signed by the lead beneficiary of the project after the approval, as well as the project partnership agreement which will be concluded between all beneficiaries participating in the project;
- **The body/institution I represent** commits itself not to carry out economic activities in relation to the project<sup>2</sup>; however, if there are activities generating any revenue (i.e. entrance tickets), these will not exceed the operational costs; also, they will be used in order to ensure sustainability, or in case an operator needs to be selected, the selection will be based on a wide dissemination in compliance with the rules of public procurement (**not applicable in case of projects falling under state aid incidence<sup>3</sup>**);
- **The body/institution I represent** commits itself in:
  - complying with the relevant public procurement rules (internal, national, European and programme specific rules if existing) and
  - in making the results available to the public, free of charge, under equal conditions, even during the period of sustainability (**not applicable in case of projects falling under state aid incidence**);
- **The body/institution I represent** commits itself in complying with the obligation on ensuring project sustainability and its operation for at least 5 years after the financial closure of the project;
- **The body/institution I represent** confirms that any project expenditure related to the above mentioned project has not, is, neither will be funded by any other EU programme.
- **The body/institution I represent** confirms that any possible generated revenues are declared within the project budget;

#### D.Statement about VAT

**only non-recoverable VAT is included** in the Applicant budget and I declare that the **non-recoverable VAT** is borne by the Applicant as final beneficiary; OR

**recoverable VAT is not included** in the Applicant budget and I am aware that **recoverable VAT** will not be eligible for reimbursement; OR

**declares that VAT can be partially recovered in our organisation and that the recoverable part is not included in the Applicant budget as it is not eligible for reimbursement.**

#### E. Statement on Applicant's contribution

- 1) commits itself to the project and the activities laid down in the application form, and intends to provide the total amount of EUR 100.767,5 as contribution to the project's budget as follows:

\_\_\_\_\_

<sup>1</sup> According to the provisions of the approved Cooperation Programme;

<sup>2</sup> Except for projects regarding investments in infrastructure for which the local impact is proved.

<sup>3</sup> The provision regarding the selection of an operator based on a wide dissemination in compliance with the rules of public procurement does not apply to the exceptions mentioned in the EU legislation (for example: in case of investments in local infrastructure, selection of a regional sanitation operator or when a comparative analysis with the costs of a typical well-run company is possible).

Type of contribution	EUR (if applicable)	From (if applicable)
Own public contribution	100.767,5	Mezobereny City
Own private contribution		
Total	100.767,5	

2) states that has  public /  private legal status;

**F. Please complete according to your case, if your institution/organisation was involved in previous projects financed under ETC Programmes 2007-2013 with previous average weighted financial execution rates of less than 50%, taking into consideration the value of their initial approved budget:**

- Yes  
 No  
 Not Applicable

#### Project Applicant signature

- Place and date – Mezobereny, 12.01.2018
- Name of signing person - **Siklósi István**
- Position of signing person - Mayor
- Signature of Applicant
- Stamp of Applicant (if available)

[A pályázó szervezet hivatalos fejlécére nyomtatva]

#### A pályázó nyilatkozata az Interreg V-A Románia-Magyarország vonatkozásában

Siklósi István az ID, nr \_\_\_\_\_ által kibocsátott \_\_\_\_\_, mint a Mezőberényi Önkormányzat jogi képviselője, mint a „Turisztikai és kulturális infrastruktúra fejlesztése Szomszédos országokban - Mezőberény – Borosjenő” című pályázat kedvezményezettje, annak tudatában, hogy a hamis nyilatkozat a büntető törvénykönyv szerint \_\_\_\_\_ bűncselekmény, \_\_\_\_\_ kijelentem az \_\_\_\_\_ alábbiakat:

#### A. Nyilatkozat benyújtásra

- Igazolom, hogy a pályázati űrlapban és annak mellékleteiben szereplő információk pontosak és igazak, és a program pénzügyi támogatása szükséges a projekt megvalósításához.
- Igazolom, hogy a papírverzióból származó információk megegyeznek a beolvasott (beszkennelt) verzió

információival. Tudomásul veszem, hogy ha az elektronikus változat és a papírverzió közötti különbségeket azonosították, a pályázatom elutasítható.

- Igazolom, hogy a projekt összhangban áll az érintett régiókkal és országokkal kapcsolatos vonatkozó uniós és nemzeti/regionális jogszabályokkal és politikákkal;
- Megerősítem, hogy a projekt tiszteletben tartja az átláthatóságot, a nemzeti integritást, az esélyegyenlőséget és a megkülönböztetésmentességet elveit, a fenntartható fejlődést, a férfiak és nők közötti egyenlőséget és nincs káros hatása a környezetre;
- Megerősítem, hogy a projekt megfelel az EUSDR-nek;
- Megerősítem, hogy a szervezetem elkötelezetten vesz részt a projekt tevékenységeiben és finanszírozásában;
- Igazolom, hogy semmilyen okból nem tudok arról, hogy a projektet nem lehetett végrehajtani, vagy végrehajtását késedelem nélkül lehetett végrehajtani.
- Megértettem, hogyha a pályázati alapon, vagy annak mellékleteiben hiányos vagy pontatlan adatok vannak, a pályázatom elutasítható.

### **B. Elfogadhatósági nyilatkozat**

- Az általam képviselt testület/intézmény nem áll csődeljárás vagy felszámolás alatt, nincs folyamatban bírósági ügye, nem kötött szerződést hitelezőkkel, nem függesztette fel üzleti tevékenységét, nem érintett az ilyen ügyekben, és nincs hasonló eljárásból származó helyzetben, a nemzeti jogszabályokban vagy az uniós jogszabályokban foglaltak szerint;
- jogi képviselőit nem ítélték el jogerőre emelkedő határozattal (vagyis olyanban, amely ellen nem lehet fellebbezéssel élni);
- jogi képviselői nem vétkesek bármilyen súlyos szakmai köteleességszegésben;
- Az általam képviselt szervezet teljesítette az összevont államháztartás adósságainak kifizetésére vonatkozó valamennyi kötelezettséget;
- jogi képviselői ellen nincs jogerős ítélet csalás, korrupció, bünszervezetben való részvétel vádjában, vagy a közösségre vagy a nemzeti pénzügyi érdekekre nézve káros egyéb jogellenes tevékenység miatt;
- sem az általam képviselt testület/intézmény, sem annak jogi képviselői nem minősülnek szerződészegőnek a közösségi vagy a nemzeti költségvetésből finanszírozott közbeszerzési eljárással vagy egyéb támogatási eljárással kapcsolatos szerződéses kötelezettségeinek elmulasztása miatt;
- Az általam képviselt testület/intézmény az elmúlt 5 év során nem kapott támogatást közpénzből nyújtott támogatás finanszírozására az ezen pályázati felhívás keretében benyújtott pályázatok benyújtásának határideje előtt az elérni kívánt célok, tevékenységek és eredmények tekintetében (infrastrukturális projektek esetében ez a rendelkezés ugyanazon típusú infrastruktúrára vagy infrastruktúra szegmensre vonatkozik);
- Sem az általam képviselt testület/intézmény, sem annak jogi képviselői nem tartoznak a nemzeti jogszabályok által meghatározott összeférhetetlenséghez; az összeférhetetlenség olyan körülményeket jelent, amelyek objektív és pártatlan módon befolyásolhatják az értékelési vagy végrehajtási folyamatot. Ilyen körülmények lehetnek gazdasági érdekek, politikai vagy nemzeti preferenciák vagy családi kapcsolatok.
- Sem az általam képviselt testület/intézmény, sem annak jogi képviselői nem bizonyult bűnösnek az Irányító Hatóság/Közös Titkárság által az ajánlattételi felhívásban való részvétel feltételeként előírt információk átadása során;
- Sem az általam képviselt testület/intézmény, sem törvényes képviselői nem kíséreltek meg vagy próbálnak bizalmas információkat szerezni vagy befolyásolni az értékelő testületeket a jelenlegi vagy korábbi pályázati felhívások értékelési folyamata során.
- Az általam képviselt testület/intézmény jogosult a projekt által érintett területen/területeken fellépni.
- A műveletet (projektet) fizikailag nem teljesítették vagy nem hajtották végre teljesen, mielőtt a program keretében a finanszírozásra irányuló kérelmet benyújtotta a kedvezményezett az irányító

hatóságnak, függetlenül attól, hogy a kedvezményezett minden kapcsolódó kifizetést végrehajtott-e. A támogatási kérelem benyújtását megelőzően végrehajtott tevékenységek esetében, amelyekre a kiadásokat előkészítő költségekként térítik meg, az alkalmazandó jogszabályokat betartották;

- A művelet (projekt)nem foglalja magában azokat a tevékenységeket, amelyek egy olyan művelet részét képezték, amelyet a 71. cikknek megfelelően a hasznosítási tevékenységnek a programterületen kívülre történő áthelyezését követően vagy a 71. cikk szerinti helyreállítási eljárásnak kellett alávetnie.

- A saját személyzet nem végez olyan tevékenységeket, amelyekre várhatóan külsős szerződést kötnek (• olyan projektek esetében, amelyek a projektmenedzsment részeit vagy lyukakat kiszűrik ideértve a projekt közbeszerzések megszervezésével kapcsolatos külső szakértőket, a pénzügyi és műszaki jellegű szolgáltatásokat jelentéstétele a projekt vagy más tevékenységek vonatkozásában).

- Az Interreg VA Románia-Magyarország Program keretében benyújtandó kérelem megfelel:

- a helyi hatáselemzésben szereplő, korábban a Román Versenytanácsnak benyújtott adatoknak (annak érdekében, hogy megkapja az állami támogatási szabályok előfordulásáról szóló megerősítő levelet a projekt esetében,

- a Román Verseny Tanács által adott ajánlásoknak, adott esetben.

### **C. Nyilatkozat az elkötelezettségről**

- Az általam képviselt testület / intézmény hozzájárul a támogatható kiadásokhoz és biztosítja a projekt végrehajtásához szükséges pénzeszközök ideiglenes rendelkezésre állását a programból történő visszatérítések előtt és között;

- Az általam képviselt testület / intézmény a projekt megvalósítása során felmerült összes tevékenységre vonatkozó nem támogatható kiadást fedezi;

- Az általam képviselt testület / intézmény biztosítja, hogy a projektmenedzsment csapat képviselői a projekt teljes megvalósítási időszakában rendelkezésre álljanak;

- Az általam képviselt testület / intézmény biztosítja a projekt végrehajtásához tervezett egyéb források rendelkezésre állását, ahogyan azt a pályázati űrlap tartalmazza.

- Az általam képviselt testület / intézmény kijelenti, hogy szükség lehet a becsült költségvetés méretének csökkentésére / felülvizsgálatára a 8 támogatható megye közötti kiegyensúlyozott pénzügyi elosztás előre meghatározott feltételeinek összefüggésében;

- Az általam képviselt testület / intézmény kijelenti, hogy a támogatási szerződésben (amelyet a jóváhagyás után a projekt vezető kedvezményezettje ír alá) szereplő valamennyi kedvezményezettet a projekt kedvezményezettjeként elfogadja, valamint a projekt partnerségi megállapodást is, amelyet minden a projektben részt vevő között köttetik;

- Az általam képviselt testület / intézmény kötelezettséget vállal arra, hogy nem folytat gazdasági tevékenységet a projekttel kapcsolatosan; ha azonban bármilyen bevételt generáló tevékenység (pl. belépőjegy) van, akkor ezek nem haladják meg a működési költségeket; a fenntarthatóság biztosítására használják fel, vagy ha az üzemeltetőt kell kiválasztani, a kiválasztás a közbeszerzési szabályoknak megfelelően zajlik (nem alkalmazható az állami támogatással járó projektek esetében);

- Az általam képviselt testület / intézmény elkötelezi magát:

- a vonatkozó közbeszerzési szabályok betartására (belső, nemzeti, európai és programspecifikus szabályok, amennyiben léteznek) és -

- az eredmények elérhetővé tételére a nyilvánosság számára díjmentesen, egyenlő feltételek mellett, még a fenntarthatóság időszaka alatt (nem alkalmazandó az állami támogatással járó projektek esetében);

- Az általam képviselt testület / intézmény kötelezettséget vállal a projekt fenntarthatóságának és működésének biztosítására vonatkozóan a projekt pénzügyi lezárását követően legalább öt évig;

- Az általam képviselt testület / intézmény megerősíti, hogy a fent említett projekthez kapcsolódó bármely projektköltség semmilyen más uniós programból nem finanszírozható.



- Az általam képviselt testület / intézmény megerősíti, hogy a lehetséges bevételeket a projekt költségvetésében deklarálják;

#### **D. Nyilatkozat az ÁFÁ-ról**

csak a vissza nem igényelhető Áfa szerepel a pályázó költségvetésében, és kijelentem, hogy a vissza nem igényelhető ÁFÁ-t a Végső kedvezményezettnek kell viselnie; VAGY

X a visszaigényelhető Áfa nem szerepel a pályázó költségvetésében, és tudomásom van arról, hogy a visszaigényelhető Áfa nem jogosult visszatérítésre; VAGY

kijelenti, hogy a ÁfaA részben visszaigényelhető a szervezetünkben, és hogy a megtérülő rész nem szerepel a pályázó költségvetésében, mivel nem jogosult visszatérítésre.

#### **E. Nyilatkozat a pályázó hozzájárulásáról**

1) elkötelezi magát a pályázati formanyomtatványban meghatározott projekthez és tevékenységekhez, és a projekt költségvetésében való hozzájárulásként 100.767,5 euró összeget kíván biztosítani az alábbiak szerint:

hozzájárulás típusa	EUR (ha alkalmazható)	From (ha alkalmazható)
Saját közpénzből való hozzájárulás	100.767,5	Mezőberény Város
Saját magán hozzájárulás		
összesen	100.767,5	

2) nyilatkozik, hogy  állami /  magánjogi státusszal rendelkezik;

#### **F.**

Kérjük, töltsse ki az esetének megfelelően, ha intézménye/szervezete részt vett a 2007-2013 közötti ETC-programok keretében finanszírozott korábbi projektekből, az előző, átlagosan 50% -nál alacsonyabb átlagos súlyozott pénzügyi teljesítési arányt és az eredeti jóváhagyott költségvetésük értékét figyelembe véve:

Igen

X Nem

Nem alkalmazható

A pályázó aláírása

Hely és dátum – Mezőberény, 12.01.2018

Aláíró neve – Siklósi István

Az aláíró személy pozíciója - polgármester

A pályázó aláírása

A pályázó bélyegzője (ha van)

# Pre-Agreement for Partnership

*to be signed in case of Flagship Projects*

**Title of the Project proposal: Development touristic and cultural Infrastructure in Neighbourhood Area – Mezobereny – Ineu Collectively**  
**Acronym: DINAMIC**

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, Italic, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 20 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 20 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 20 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 20 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 20 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 20 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 20 pt

Deleted: .....

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 20 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 20 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 20 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 20 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 20 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 20 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, Italic, Font color: Black

Deleted: .....

Pre-Agreement for Partnership

Having regard to

- Regulation (EU) No 1303/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 December 2013 laying down common provisions on the European Regional Development Fund, the European Social Fund, the Cohesion Fund, the European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development and the European Maritime and Fisheries Fund and laying down general provisions on the European Regional Development Fund, the European Social Fund, the Cohesion Fund and the European Maritime and Fisheries Fund and repealing Council Regulation (EC) No 1083/2006,
- Regulation (EU) No 1299/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 December 2013 on specific provisions for the support from the European Regional Development Fund to the European territorial cooperation goal (ETC regulation) laying down the detailed provisions of the ETC programmes,
- Regulation (EU) No 1301/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 December 2013 on the European Regional Development Fund and on specific provisions concerning the Investment for growth and jobs goal and repealing Regulation (EC) No 1080/2006,
- The Interreg V-A Romania-Hungary Programme (hereinafter referred to as Cooperation Programme), as approved by Commission Decision no. 9112/09.12.2015,

the following has been agreed between

Ineu City, having its head office at Ineu in Calea Republicii 5, VAT no or Fiscal code number 3519020, represented by Calin-Ilie Avrudan, as Lead Beneficiary (hereinafter referred to as LB) of the project proposal called DINAMIC;

and

Mezobereny City having its head office at Mezobereny in Kossuth ter 1, VAT no or Fiscal code number....., represented by Siklosi Istvan, as Project Beneficiary no. 2;

Underground Festival Association having its head office at ..... in (address)....., VAT no or Fiscal code number....., represented by....., as Project Beneficiary no. 3;

Bekes County Council having its head office at Bekescsaba in Arpad sor 18, VAT no or Fiscal code number....., represented by Mihaly Zalai, as Project Beneficiary no. 4;

hereinafter jointly referred to as the Parties

for the elaboration and implementation of the Concept Note Development touristic and cultural Infrastructure in Neighbourhood Area – Mezobereny – Ineu Collectively, with acronym DINAMIC, to be submitted for evaluation and approval in the framework of the Restricted Call for Proposals for Flagship projects to be launched under the Interreg V-A Romania-Hungary Programme.

Deleted: .....  
Deleted: .....  
Deleted: (address).....  
Deleted: .....  
Deleted: .....  
Deleted: ..... <Acronym  
Deleted: >  
Deleted: .....  
Deleted: .....  
Deleted: (address).....  
Deleted: .....  
Deleted: .....

Deleted: To be multiplied by no. of PBs¶  
Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: Opensans  
Deleted: <project title>  
Deleted: <project acronym  
Deleted: >

The Parties convene and sign the followings:

### Article 1 Project Objectives

1. The project **DINAMIC** shall contribute to the objectives set out in the Cooperation Programme. The project objectives are described in Annex 1 to the present agreement and shall be further elaborated in the Concept Note, to be submitted for evaluation and approval in the framework of the Restricted Call for Proposals for Flagship projects launched under the Interreg V-A Romania-Hungary Programme.

Deleted: <Acronym>

### Article 2 Object and aim of the Pre-Agreement for Partnership

1. The parties, through the present Pre-Agreement for Partnership, define the relations that shall govern them in the partnership set up in order to submit the above-mentioned Concept Note for evaluation and approval.
2. Whereas the Concept Note is selected for further development of the Full Application, the partner applicants shall sign a Partnership Agreement for implementation of the approved Concept Note, prior to the signature of the dedicated subsidy contract between the Managing Authority and the Lead Applicant, and its provisions, together with provisions of the Concept Note Application Form and its Annexes shall become binding for the Parties.
3. The mutual responsibilities for the development of the project and submission of the Full Application shall be detailed in the Concept Note Application Form, to be submitted for assessment by the Evaluation Committee, and further on, for selection by the Monitoring Committee of the Interreg V-A Romania-Hungary Programme. The Parties have to fully respect the content and obligations set by the abovementioned documents.

### Article 3 Duration of the Pre-Agreement for Partnership

1. This Pre-Agreement is valid from the date of signature by all parties and shall remain in force as follows:
  - a) until the Partnership Agreement afferent to the Full Application enters into force, which shall further define the rules and sharing of responsibilities among the Parties for implementing the full project;
  - b) until the receipt of rejection notification for the project proposal, be that in the Concept Note of Full Application phases.

**Article 4**  
**Rights and duties of the parties**

**1. The LB shall:**

- a) ensure the coordination of the development of the Concept Note within the deadlines commonly agreed, according to the activities and financial allocations established for each of the Parties and in line with the requirements of the Restricted Call for Proposal;
- b) ensure the observance of agreements regarding the project budget, allocation and activities per Parties, for the preparation of the Concept Note, and for the development of the project and its Full Application, as well as their further mentioning in the Partnership Agreement;
- c) be responsible for the overall coordination, management and submission, in due time, of the Concept Note. The LB assumes responsibilities for the entire project proposal vis-à-vis the Joint Secretariat and the Managing Authority;
- d) ensure that its own decision-making level supports the project;
- e) ensure that the necessary permits and authorisations are obtained in due time, prior to the submission of the Concept Note, if needed.
- f) appoint a contact person for contributing to the elaboration of parts of the Concept Note under their responsibility and authorise the contact person to represent the LB;
- g) ensure that PBs are involved in the decision making regarding to the Concept Note, and especially, agrees with all PBs beforehand any request or information is addressed to the Joint Secretariat in relation to the relevant Restricted Call for Proposals;
- h) support PBs in defining their part of the Concept Note by providing them with the correct information, indications and clarifications on the procedures, the forms and other relevant documents, ensuring that all the PBs receive every relevant information;
- i) ensure pre-financing of its activities necessary for the elaboration of the Concept Note/detailed project proposal until the project is approved and becomes entitled for reimbursements.

**2. The PBs shall:**

- a) provide the LB with all the information necessary to coordinate the contribution of PBs in developing the Concept Note within the deadlines commonly agreed, according to the activities and financial allocations established for each of the Parties and in line with the requirements of the Restricted Call for Proposal;
- b) contribute to ensuring the observance of agreements regarding the project budget, allocation and activities per PB, and for the development of the project

and its Full Application as well as their further mentioning in the Partnership Agreement;

- c) contribute to overall Concept Note elaboration and submission, and further on to its implementation, according to their part undertaken with due care and motivation, completing their activities foreseen and communicated by the LB, in due time;
- d) ensure that its own decision making level supports the project and ensure obtaining of the necessary permits and authorisations and involvement of the relevant stakeholders at local, regional and national level, in due time, prior to the submission, if needed;
- e) appoint a contact person for contributing to the parts of the Concept Note under their responsibility and authorise the contact person to represent the PB,
- f) ensure pre-financing of its activities necessary for the elaboration of the parts of Concept Note/detailed project proposal what the PB is responsible for, until the project is approved and becomes entitled for reimbursements.

#### Article 5 Confidentiality

1. The parties agree that any information that they obtain during the elaboration of the project proposal is confidential.

#### Article 6 Modifications, withdrawals, disputes and legal succession

1. Any modification to the present Pre-Agreement shall be previously agreed and signed by all parties and attached to it as an addendum.
2. In case of any dispute between the Parties, the Parties are obliged to work towards an amicable settlement.
3. In case of legal succession, e.g. when a one of the Parties changes its legal form, all duties under this contract are transferred to the legal successor. Should a legal succession occur, the concerned Party shall notify beforehand the LB, and the LB has to notify the Joint Secretariat.

#### Article 7 Working Language

1. The working language of the partnership governed by this agreement shall be English. All documentations shall be submitted in English. In case of the translation of any document into another language, the English version shall be the binding one.

**Deleted:** The PBs may stipulate any other arrangement that they consider necessary in their relation.



Article 8  
Concluding provisions

1. This Pre-Agreement for Partnership is done in 4 originals, of which 1 is received by each of the contracting parties.
2. By signing this Pre-Agreement the Parties have fully understood and accepted its content including the objective(s) stipulated in Annex 1, and undertake the activities and responsibilities in the meaning as included therein.
3. The Parties acknowledge that in case the Concept Note is approved, a detailed project proposal shall be elaborated and Partnership Agreement shall be signed stipulating the rights and responsibilities of the implementation between the Parties.

Deleted: <number>

Deleted: <number>

Place and date:

Ineu, 12.01.2018

Stamp and signature

Calin Ilie- Abridan

Name of organisation  
as Lead Beneficiary

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Mezzer City

Ineu, 12.01.2018

Stamp and signature

Siklósi István,

Name of organisation  
as Project Beneficiary 1<sup>1</sup>

Mezobereny City

Ineu, 12.01.2018

Stamp and signature

Mihaly Zalai

Name of organisation  
as Project Beneficiary 2

Bekes County Council

Deleted: .....

Formatted: Left

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: Name of legal representative

Deleted: Name of legal representative

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Left

Deleted: .....

Deleted: Name of legal representative

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

Underground Festival Association

<sup>1</sup> Add as many signature cases, as necessary.

Objective(s) of the project proposal